
 
    

 

 
AGENDA 

CONSERVANCY SCENIC COORIDOR COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, September 21, 2022 at 7:00 P.M.  

As Needed Meeting 
Village Hall, 3110 RFD, Old McHenry Road, Long Grove 

 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. VISITORS BUSINESS 

 
III. MEETING MINUTES  

 
a. Approval of the June 15, 2021 Meeting Minutes  

 
IV. OLD APPLICATIONS 

 
a. CSCC 2022-001 - Review of the proposed new location for the stormwater storage basin at 6881 

September Boulevard submitted by Terry Barnett on behalf of Mr. Alex Dekhtyar the homeowner. 
 

V. NEW APPLICATIONS 
 
a. None 

 
VI. OTHER BUSINESS  

 
a. Recommended Native Plant List 

 
b. Invasive Plant Website 

 
c. Draft 2023 Meeting Schedule 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
UPCOMING MEETING - Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting: October 5, 2022 @ 7:00 PM  

 
The Village of Long Grove is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 Individuals 
with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 
to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or 
the facilities, are requested to phone the Long Grove Village Manager at 847-634-9440 or TDD 847-634- 9650 
promptly to allow the Village of Long Grove to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 



MEETING MINUTES



 

 
Page 1 of 3 

 

MEETING MINUTES OF THE 
LONG GROVE CONSERVANCY AND SCENIC CORRIDOR COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING 
June 15, 2022 

7:00 P.M. 
 

Chairwoman Burger called the meeting of the Long Grove Conservancy and Scenic Corridor Committee (CSCC) 
to order at 7:03 p.m. with the following members present. 
 
Members Present: Jeanette Burger; Maggie McCasey; and Rob Seitz  
 
Members Absent: Adam Faust 

       
       Also Present: Amanda Orenchuk and Jessica Marvin, Community Development Services 

 
VISITOR BUSINESS 
 
There was no visitor business. 
 
MEETING MINUTES  
 

1) Approval of the April 7, 2022 Meeting Minutes. 
 

M. McCasey provided corrections to various typographical errors on page two of the minutes.   
 

A motion was made by M. McCasey, seconded by R. Seitz to recommend approval of the April 7, 2022 
meeting minutes, as amended. 

 
Ayes: M. McCasey; R. Seitz; J. Burger 
Nays: 
Absent: A. Faust 

 
OLD APPLICATIONS 
 
There were no old applications.  
 
NEW APPLICATIONS 
 

1) CSCC 22-01; Consideration of a request to relocate the stormwater storage basin from near the 
residence into the conservancy district located on the property at 6881 September Boulevard 
submitted by Terry Barnett on behalf of Mr. Alex Dekhtyar, the homeowner. 

 
Associate Planner Marvin informed the committee that this proposed project is to relocate the storm water 
basin. The petitioner maintains that the homeowner’s basement has flooded in the past due to heavy rainfall 
and the grading of the lot. On June 24, 2020, the Village Engineer, Geoff Perry, issued a notice of violation 



Page 2 of 3 

regarding the unauthorized work at the property located at 6881 September Boulevard. Within that notice the 
Village requested the applicant apply for a building permit by June 30, 2020, or fines in the amount of $1,000 
per day will be assessed. An engineering plan was approved on November 3, 2020. In December 2020, the 
retired Village Planner Jim Hogue provided the recommendations from the CSCC to the applicant to revise 
their plans to accommodate the recommendations of the committee. The Village Engineer approved the 
revised plans in March of 2022 with conditions that the proposed project needs to obtain approval from the 
CSCC and Village Board. 

The CSCC reviewed this case in December of 2020 and the committee members revisited what happened at 
the previous meeting regarding this property. The revised plans were brought to them for this meeting.  

Chairwoman Burger and M. McCasey met with the contractor, Terry Barnett, to inspect the site for this 
project. Before the scheduled CSCC meeting. Chairwoman Burger and M. McCasey reviewed the revised plans 
and reported back to the committee their findings and discussed  potential recommendations for this project. 

Mr. Barnett informed the committee that he ideally would like to keep the homeowner’s backyard all turf 
after the project is completed, but the committee informed Mr. Barnett that the area where the regrading will 
be taking place is within the conservancy district and scenic corridor easement. Therefore, once the regrading 
and relocation of the storm water basins is completed the site needs to be returned back to the original use of 
a conservancy district. A variety of shrubs, trees, grasses, and forbs that are native to northern Illinois and are 
approved by the CSCC will need to be planted in the conservancy district areas that were disturbed. 

The committee members discussed different recommendations but decided to have a meeting with Village 
Manager, Greg Jackson, before making a recommendation to the Village Board regarding this proposal to 
determine the position of the village after such a long time passed without meeting. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

1) Review Conservancy – Scenic Corridor – Approved native plant List

The committee reviewed two different native plant list and after further discussion the committee will 
continue to use the Village of Long Grove’s approved native plant list. 

2) List of invasive plant species

In Section 7-5-9 it states, “Consequently, no permit is required for the removal of nonnative invasive or 
noxious vegetation such as, but not limited to, Canada thistle, purple loosestrife, reed canary grass, buckthorn, 
teasel, garlic mustard, and those other such plants which are on the approved list for removal at the village 
hall”.  

Chairwoman Burger mentioned there is not an approved list readily available at the Village Hall and suggested 
the village uses the list of invasive plants from the Chicago Living Corridors website. The list includes the top 
12 invasive plant species with pictures. The CSCC would like to have an additional link on the village website 
that homeowners can reference at home. Chairwoman Burger will further research if this list of invasive plants 
is acceptable to the committee and the Village of Long Grove. 



 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business, a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by M. McCasey, seconded by R. Seitz. 
 
Ayes: M. McCasey; R. Seitz; J. Burger 
Nays: 
Absent: A. Faust 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting is on August 3, 2022 @ 7:00 PM. 
 
 
Meeting Adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 
 
Jessica Marvin 
Associate Planner 
 



6881 September 
Boulevard

Staff Presentation
Conservancy and Scenic 

Corridor Committee
June 15, 2022



Location Map

26881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water

68
81



Aerial

36881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water

6881



History

46881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water

• On June 24, 2020, the Village Engineer, Geoff Perry, issued a notice of violation
regarding the unauthorized work at the property located at 6881 September
Boulevard.

• The Village requested the applicant to apply for a building permit by June 30, 2020,
or fines in the amount of $1,000 per day will be assessed.

• An engineering plan was approved on November 3, 2020 and was revised on March
24, 2022.



History

56881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water



History

66881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water



History

76881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water



History

86881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water



History

96881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water

Retired Planner Jim Hogue provided comments from the CSCC to the applicant on December 22, 2020.
Below are the recommendations:

• The plans/plantings submitted appear to be inadequate for the entire conservancy easement; a restoration plan,
identify the type of plant species and their location in the entire conservancy easement should be submitted for
consideration.

• There was a general concern the plant species proposed (3 varieties of Black-Eyed Susan) were not chosen well.

• A wider variety of native species would help reduced weeds and invasive species in the conservancy easement and
enhance its visibility.

• Consider a wider variety of native flowering species which will bloom at different times and be aesthetically pleasing
during the entire growing season.

• Certain plant varieties suggested for the restoration plan are not suitable for wet areas.

• Consider “rain garden plants” for the wet areas (see Lake County Stormwater Guidelines for rain garden plantings).



The Proposed Project

106881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water

• The proposed project from McGinty Bros., Inc. includes:
• Applying herbicide to eliminate existing turf grass within the Corridor Easement;
• Removal of existing turf grass after herbicide application;
• Soil preparation for seeding;
• Seeding of low-profile prairie grass and forb seed mix;
• Biodegradable erosion control blanket over seeded area;
• High mowing of native seeding to eliminate annual/biennial weed species;
• Selective herbicide application to eliminate perennial weed species;
• Follow-up selective herbicide application.



Pictures 
of the 
Property

116881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water



126881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water

Pictures 
of the 
Property



The Village Engineer approved the plan with the following 
conditions on March 24, 2022

136881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water

• Track-out is not allowed on September Boulevard at any time. Any track-out must be removed
immediately.

• All disturbed areas shall be stabilized with either topsoil, seed, and erosion control blanket
(properly secured) and/or topsoil and sod. The site needs to be fully restored within 7 days of
completion of construction, and a full stand of grass should be established within 28 days from
sod/seed placement.
• Note: All restoration in the Conservancy Easement must meet the requirements and be approved by the

Village’s Conservancy and Scenic Corridor Committee.

• Any pavement damage is to be repaired by the contractor to the satisfaction of the
Homeowner’s Association.

• Engineer’s review did not include tree impact, landscaping, architectural or structural design.



Community Development Staff Recommendation 
for 6881 September Boulevard

• The property is located at 6881 September Boulevard and within in the R-2 zoning
district. Community Development staff recommends approval to relocate the
stormwater storage basin on the property located at 6881 September Boulevard subject
to a satisfactory landscaping plan that includes a variety shrubs, trees, and grasses that
are native to the northern Illinois area and approved by the Conservancy and Scenic
Corridor Committee.

146881 September Boulevard – Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water



CSCC 22-01 - 6881 September Boulevard



 

CONSERVANCY AND SCENIC CORRIDOR COMMITTEE STAFF REPORT 

TO: Jeanette Burger, Chair 
 Conservancy Scenic Corridor Committee Members 
 
FROM: Jessica Marvin, Community Development Services 
 
SUBJECT: Flood Overflow and Movement of Flood Water – 6881 September Boulevard 
 
PUBLIC MEETING DATE: August 3, 2022 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1) CSCC Application  

 
 
PETITIONER Terry Barnett on behalf of 
  Mr. Alex Dekhtyar (homeowner) 
  6881 September Boulevard  
  Long Grove, IL 60047 
 
REQUEST 
 
Review of the proposed new location for the stormwater storage basin at 6881 September Boulevard. 
 
HISTORY 
 
The Conservancy and Scenic Corridor Committee reviewed this application at the June 15, 2022 meeting. 
The committee decided to continue this application to the next scheduled meeting to allow the committee 
members to further research this project. 
 
CONSERVANCY AND SCENIC CORRIDOR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
The CSCC should review the plans to relocate the stormwater storage basin into the conservancy district 
and the appropriateness for the new proposed stormwater storage basin location. The Village’s Stance is 
to not allow the modifications without strong evidence of necessity. 
 
JNM/AMO/JLM 
 

 



05/20/22
CSCC 2022-001

x 05/20/22 - CK # 1014

Aleksandr Dekhtyar









 

5000.503 6881 September Boulevard Grading (Lot 4 Lake Eleanora Estates) - Engineering Re-Approval_20220324.docx 

March 24, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Alex Dekhtyar 
6881 September Boulevard 
Long Grove, IL 60047 
 
Re: 6881 September Boulevard / Lot 4 Lake Eleanora Estates  

Proposed Grading Improvements 
 Engineering Re-Approval 

 
Dear Mr. Dekhtyar: 
 
We have completed our review of the revised documents submitted for the above referenced improvements. We 
are in receipt of the Engineering Plans showing proposed improvements prepared by Bono Consulting Inc., last 
revised February 1, 2021. All documents were received by our office February 28, 2022. 
 
Based on our review, we approve the project as submitted with the following conditions: 
 

1. Track-out is not allowed on September Boulevard at any time. Any track-out must be removed immediately. 

2. All disturbed areas shall be stabilized with either topsoil, seed, and erosion control blanket (properly 
secured) and/or topsoil and sod. The site needs to be fully restored within 7 days of completion of 
construction and a full stand of grass should be established within 28 days from sod/seed placement. 

Note: All restoration in the Conservancy Easement must meet the requirements and be approved by the 
Village’s Conservancy & Scenic Corridor Committee. 

3. Any pavement damage is to be repaired by the contractor to the satisfaction of the Homeowner’s 
Association. 

4. Our review did not include tree impact, landscaping, architectural or structural design. 

During construction, the following inspections and approvals will be required by our office. 
 

1. Inspection and signoff of the initial Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Measures; required prior to 
commencing land-disturbing activities. The construction access location and anticipated use needs to be 
defined at the pre-construction meeting. 

2. Site Observation after pipe is installed but before backfilling. Please contact our office to determine the 
most beneficial time for this inspection. 

3. Review and approval of the Final As-Built Survey, prepared by a licensed surveyor. (This needs to be 
submitted prior to the final site inspection.) Please also keep all restoration seed tags and submit them with 
the As-Built Survey to the Village. 

4. Final site inspection and signoff. 

Please call our office at 847-478-9700 to schedule the site inspections; a minimum of 48-hours’ notice is required. 
 
If you have any questions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to call me at 847-821-6231 or email me at 
gperry@gha-engineers.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
Gewalt Hamilton Associates, Inc. 

 
Geoffrey L. Perry, P.E. 
Village Engineer 
 
cc (via email): Ms. Margerita Romanello, Building Commissioner – Village of Long Grove 
  Mr. Ken Meek – GHA  









Natural Area Restoration and

Erosion Control Services

Company: Barnett Consulting LLC Job Name: Dekhtyar Residence

Attn: Terry Barnett  Address: 6881 September Blvd

Address: 4 Sandpiper Lane City/State: Long Grove, IL 60047

City/State: Hawthorn Woods, IL 60047 Mobile: 847-525-6230

Phone: Email:      tbarnett@glenbrookexcavating.com

We hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

Restoration of Village's Conservancy & Scenic Corridor Easement as Follows: 

Herbicide Application to Eliminate Existing Turf Grass within Corridor Easement: $495.00

Removal of Existing Turf Grass after Herbicide Application: $3,780.00

Soil Preparation for Seeding: $580.00

Seeding of Low Profile Prairie Grass and Forb Seed Mix: $1,335.00

Biodegradable Erosion Control Blanket over Seeded Area: $870.00

High Mowing of Native Seeding to Eliminate Annual/Biennial Weed Species: $495.00

Selective Herbicide Application to Eliminate Perennial Weed Species: $560.00

High Mowing of Native Seeding to Eliminate Annual/Biennial Weed Species: $495.00

Follow-Up Selective Herbicide Application: $560.00

We Propose hereby to furnish material and labor- complete in accordance with above specifications, for the sum of:

Ninety Thousand One Hundred Seventy and 00/100  -----------------------------------------dollars  ( $9,170.00 ).
Payment to be made as follows:      Net due upon completion of individual activities.

Monthly Finance Charges of 1.5% applied to all unpaid invoices after thirty days.

Authorized Customer Care Representative Signature

Brian M Wilson 5/12/2022
Please print name                     Date

Note:   This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not

accepted within      __30__ days. Acceptance of Proposal Signature                  Date of Acceptance

THANK YOU !                    [   ]  MasterCard          [   ]  Visa   [   ] American Express      $___________________

Account No. ________________________________Exp. Date__________Signature_____________________

3744 Cuba Road

Over 30 Years of Environmental Service

Acceptance of Proposal -  The above prices, specifications, and conditions are 

satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You are authorized to do the work as specified.  

Payment will be made as outlined above.

Service Address:

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a 

workmanlike manner according to standard practices.  Our workers are fully 

covered by Workmen's Compensation Insurance.  Our work is fully covered by 

General Liability Insurance.

Note:

Submit To:

Long Grove, Illinois 60047-7958

Phone: 847-526-9322

Fax: 847-526-7240

www.McGintyBros.com

Proposal

mailto:tbarnett@glenbrookexcavating.com




 

5000.503 6881 September Boulevard Grading (Lot 4 Lake Eleanora Estates) - Engineering Re-Approval_20220324.docx 

March 24, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Alex Dekhtyar 
6881 September Boulevard 
Long Grove, IL 60047 
 
Re: 6881 September Boulevard / Lot 4 Lake Eleanora Estates  

Proposed Grading Improvements 
 Engineering Re-Approval 

 
Dear Mr. Dekhtyar: 
 
We have completed our review of the revised documents submitted for the above referenced improvements. We 
are in receipt of the Engineering Plans showing proposed improvements prepared by Bono Consulting Inc., last 
revised February 1, 2021. All documents were received by our office February 28, 2022. 
 
Based on our review, we approve the project as submitted with the following conditions: 
 

1. Track-out is not allowed on September Boulevard at any time. Any track-out must be removed immediately. 

2. All disturbed areas shall be stabilized with either topsoil, seed, and erosion control blanket (properly 
secured) and/or topsoil and sod. The site needs to be fully restored within 7 days of completion of 
construction and a full stand of grass should be established within 28 days from sod/seed placement. 

Note: All restoration in the Conservancy Easement must meet the requirements and be approved by the 
Village’s Conservancy & Scenic Corridor Committee. 

3. Any pavement damage is to be repaired by the contractor to the satisfaction of the Homeowner’s 
Association. 

4. Our review did not include tree impact, landscaping, architectural or structural design. 

During construction, the following inspections and approvals will be required by our office. 
 

1. Inspection and signoff of the initial Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Measures; required prior to 
commencing land-disturbing activities. The construction access location and anticipated use needs to be 
defined at the pre-construction meeting. 

2. Site Observation after pipe is installed but before backfilling. Please contact our office to determine the 
most beneficial time for this inspection. 

3. Review and approval of the Final As-Built Survey, prepared by a licensed surveyor. (This needs to be 
submitted prior to the final site inspection.) Please also keep all restoration seed tags and submit them with 
the As-Built Survey to the Village. 

4. Final site inspection and signoff. 

Please call our office at 847-478-9700 to schedule the site inspections; a minimum of 48-hours’ notice is required. 
 
If you have any questions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to call me at 847-821-6231 or email me at 
gperry@gha-engineers.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
Gewalt Hamilton Associates, Inc. 

 
Geoffrey L. Perry, P.E. 
Village Engineer 
 
cc (via email): Ms. Margerita Romanello, Building Commissioner – Village of Long Grove 
  Mr. Ken Meek – GHA  

mromanello
Highlight

mromanello
Highlight

mromanello
Highlight

mromanello
Highlight

mromanello
Highlight

mromanello
Highlight



VILLAGE OF LONG GROVE 3110 RFD OLD MCHENRY ROAD LONG GROVE, IL. 60047 PH: (847) 634-9440 

Approved Plans: Engineering Plans (2 Sheets) prepared by Bono Consulting, Inc., last revised February 1, 2021
Approved by:

                                                            March 24, 2022
                       Geoffrey L. Perry, P.E.
                       Enforcement Officer





VILLAGE OF LONG GROVE 3110 RFD OLD MCHENRY ROAD LONG GROVE, IL. 60047 PH: (847) 634-9440 
This permit is subject to further special conditions as follows: 
PROVIDE PRIOR NOTIFICATION OF THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING TO THE VILLAGE (847) 634-9440 INSPECTOR 
FIVE WORKING DAYS BEFORE START OF CONSTURCTION TO ENABLE VILLAGE ATTENDANCE. 
PROVIDE AS-BUILT PLANS OF THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM TO VILLAGE PRIOR TO FINAL SEEDING. 



/o//A

Gilberto Quintero

Gilberto’s Landscaping

4023 Rail RD

East Chicago IN 46312

(708)374-1063

Aleksandr Dekhtyar

6881 September Blvd

Long Grove IL 60047

Project:

The work consists of regrading the plot in the backyard in order to decrease flooding of the

property. This will be done by moving the existing 0.78 ac-ft of storage basin further south closer

to Indian Creek Rd. A silt fence around the construction area will be provided. The finished dirt

grade in lawn shall be 2” below top of sod. I will remove any material that is not required for site
backfill. All tracked soil will be removed.

Pricing: $3,000

Gilberto Quintero Aleksandr Dekhtyar

borte- Quintero
 

 

leobg
Rectangle

leobg
Rectangle

leobg
Rectangle

leobg
Rectangle

leobg
Typewriter
11/22/2020

leobg
Typewriter
Landscape restoration plan:

leobg
Typewriter
We will plant the following type of plants as on the approved plant list: Rudbeckia hirta (Black eyed susan), Rudbeckia subtomentosa (Showy black eyed Susan), Rudbeckia triloba (Brown eyed Susan). These species of wild flowers will be planted on the conservative easement area. The amount of these specimens will be 50 of each to total 150 flowers. This work will begin in the Spring of 2021. 



2023 DRAFT MEETING 
SCHEDULE



 

 

2023 
CONSERVANCY/SCENIC COORIDOR COMMITTEE (CSCC) 

REGULAR MEETING DATES 
 

REGULAR MEETING DATE 
(1st Wednesday of the Month) 

 
January 4, 2023 

February 1, 2023 

March 1, 2023 

April 5, 2023 

May 3, 2023 

June 7, 2023 

July 5, 2023 - Cancelled * 

August 2, 2023 

September 6, 2023 

October 4, 2023 

November 1, 2023 

December 6, 2023 

“AS NEEDED” MEETING DATE 
3RD WEDNESDAY OF THE MONTH 

 
No Meeting 

No Meeting 

March 15, 2023 

April 19, 2023 

May 17, 2023 

June 21, 2023 

July 19, 2023 

August 16, 2023 

September 20, 2023 

October 18, 2023 

No Meeting 

No Meeting 

 

*Any July business to be conducted on the as needed date. 
 

• The Village of Long Grove CSCC regularly meets at 7:00 PM at the Village Hall every 1st Wednesday of the month.  
A second “as needed” meeting date on the 3rd Wednesday of the month may be held except for the months of 
January, February, November, and December when meetings are held only once a month, that being the 1st 
Wednesday.  
 

• In order to be included on a CSCC agenda, complete applications must be submitted ten (10) days prior to the 
scheduled meeting date.   A $30 filing fee is required with each application.  




